
Adopted July 20, 2009 
 

HISTORIC TRIANGLE 

BICYCLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
JAMES CITY COUNTY         CITY OF WILLIAMSBURG          YORK COUNTY  

 
Regular Meeting 

Monday April 20. 2009 
York Hall, Yorktown 

East Room 
 

MEETING NOTES 
 
Members Present: Rich Thompson, Nancy Carter, Bill Beatovich, Allen Turnbull, Scott 
Bartram, Dorothy Geyer 
 
Non-voting: Bradley Weidenhammer (VDOT) 
 
Members Absent: Don Cherry, John Laben, Kitty Preston, Tim Sutphin, David Wilson, James 
Wirkner 
 
Staff Present: Amy Parker (York County), Luke Vinciguerra (James City County), Rod Rhodes 
(City of Williamsburg) 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
 
No comments 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Minutes from the January 20, 2009 meeting were adopted as amended. 
 
VDOT MATTERS/FOLLOW UP FROM JANUARY MEETING 
 
Jolly Pond Dam 
 
The group discussed concerns with the closure of the road across the dam.  Mr. Weidenhammer 
indicated that at this time, there were no plans to reopen the road.  James Icenhour, James City 
County Supervisor had requested reinstatement of the dam permit from the Governor’s office, 
but the permit could not be reinstated due to the unsafe state of the dam structure. 
 
Mr. Thompson inquired if the property owner had been approached about repairing the dam and 
if there was any local or state government assistance available.  Mr. Weidenhammer noted that 
James City County staff had worked with the property owner.  Mr. Vincigerra indicated that the 
County Attorney’s office had also been involved with the issue, and would contact them for an 
update.  Mr. Weidenhammer noted that a consultant had been hired to research alternative 
actions to resolve the problem. 
 



4/20/09 HTBAC Meeting Notes 
Page 2 
 
Ms. Carter noted that the road closure had impacted biking in the area, and that Williamsburg 
Area Bicyclists club members had frequently biked the road. 
 
Mt. Beatovich sited potential Fire Life and Safety department concerns given the longer travel 
distance to detour around the dam. 
 
VDOT Budget 
 
Mr. Weidenhammer noted that VDOT anticipated a 2.9 billion dollar shortfall this year.  The 
agency was considering elimination of 1000 salaried positions and 450 hourly positions.  
Services may be impacted, and the agency’s focus would be on maintenance work.  For example, 
service level cuts could include less frequent mowing of right-of-way areas than in previous 
years. 
 
Ms. Geyer asked if less frequent mowing would result in sight distance problems.  Mr. 
Weidenhammer answered that sight distance areas would be maintained as needed. 
 
Mr. Bartram asked about the normal width of mowing beyond the edge of asphalt, and Mr. 
Weidenhammer answered that typically, grassed areas were mowed to the back of road ditch 
line. 
 
Mr. Beatovich asked if road striping and sweeping work would be done, and Mr. Weidenhammer 
answered that there would be budget items for such maintenance, but at reduced levels. 
 
New Town Issues 
 
At the last meeting, members noted a light pole installed in the middle of one of the sidewalks.  
VDOT staff checked the site, and found that the pole was not in the public right-of-way; 
therefore, it would be the developer or property owner’s responsibility to correct the problem. 
 
Installation of uneven cobblestone surfaces on Casey Lane was discussed further.  Mr. 
Weidenhammer noted that VDOT would not accept the street into the State system as 
constructed.  Mr. Vinciguerra indicated that the issue could be handled as a County Code 
violation.  Mr. Bartram asked if there were specific bike or pedestrian standards precluding 
cobblestone surfaces, and Mr. Weidenhammer answered that cobblestone surfaces are acceptable 
as long as they are finished with an even surface. 
 
Mooretown Road at Clark Lane striping 
 
Ms. Parker noted that correction of the intersection bike lane striping would have to wait until 
the next time the roads were restriped.  Mr. Weidenhammer indicated that a sign to indicate the 
end of the bike lane could be installed at Clark Lane. 
 
Mr. Thompson noted that there should be improved plan review and inspections to insure bike 
lanes are installed properly before projects are finished. 
 
Jamestown Road/Route 199 Intersection 



4/20/09 HTBAC Meeting Notes 
Page 3 
 
 
Ladder striping for the pedestrian crosswalks was discussed.  Mr. Turnbull noted the recent 
pedestrian death that occurred near the intersection.  Mr. Weidenhammer indicated that he had 
talked to City of Williamsburg Public Works Director Dan Clayton about the possibility of 
funding from the City if VDOT could not fund a restriping project.  Mr. Turnbull and Ms. Carter 
will follow-up on the issue with City staff.  Members noted that HTBAC meeting minutes of 
April 16, 2007 indicated a cost estimate of $3,000 by VDOT Williamsburg Residency 
Administrator Jim Brewer. 
 
Chickahominy Bridge 
 
Mr. Thompson inquired if the expansion joints on the bridge would be covered.  Mr. Turnbull 
indicated that he thought they would have metal plate covers.  Mr. Weidenhammer will verify 
the information for the next meeting. 
 
Signage on E. Rochambeau Drive and Mooretown Road 
 
Mr. Rhodes inquired about bike signs directing cyclists to the Waller Mill Trail off of E. 
Rochambeau and Mooretown Road.  Mr. Weidenhammer will follow up on the request. 
 
Treybern Drive & Monticello Avenue Crossing Signals 
 
Members noted that signal change sensors were not being tripped at the noted intersections.  Mr. 
Bartram indicated that the bicyclist had to be stopped in a very specific spot on the pavement.  
Members asked if the sensors could be adjusted.  Mr. Weidenhammer answered that they could 
be adjusted, but if the sensitivity is adjusted too high, traffic in the adjacent lane could trip the 
device. 
 
Mr. Bartram requested that members compile a list of problem intersections to discuss at the next 
meeting. 
 
VDOT Budget 
 
Mr. Beatovich asked what HTBAC could do to assist VDOT with budget issues.  Mr. 
Weidenhammer answered that correspondence in support of the residency office could be sent to 
the VDOT District Administrator in Suffolk.  Mr. Beatovich indicated he would send a support 
letter to Suffolk with a copy to VDOT Transportation Manager Eric Stringfield. 
 
Per an email request, Don Cherry inquired about bike lanes for the Route 60 connection to the 
Quarterpath at Williamsburg development and at the Kingsmill/Route 199/Quarterpath 
intersection.  Bike Lanes have not been proposed for these intersections. 
 
Mr. Cherry also inquired if bike lanes existing Route 60 in the area of the proposed relocation.  
Mr. Vinciguerra indicated County staff would recommend bike lanes for both roads. 
 
Colonial Parkway Bridge 
 



4/20/09 HTBAC Meeting Notes 
Page 4 
 
Ms. Geyer noted that some seepage could be occurring from the Parkway bridges, and that repair 
is scheduled as maintenance funds are available. 
 
BIKEWAY PROJECTS STATUS REPORT 
 
York County 
 
Ms. Parker reported that traffic counts would be taken for the Cook Road bikeway project later 
in the summer when visitation is higher. 
 
James City County 
 
Mr. Vinciguerra reported that the County does not currently have the 20% match funds for the 
proposed Ironbound Road improvements. 
 
Williamsburg 
 
Mr. Rhodes reported that there are no active bicycle projects in the City at this time. 
 
PABAC MEETING REPORT 
 
No meeting was held since the last HTBAC meeting.  Members inquired about the lack of 
meetings for the committee.  Mr. Weidenhammer will follow up on the status of the committee. 
 
CHAIR’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Beatovich requested that member let the current committee secretary if they want specific 
items of the upcoming agendas. 
 
Discussion ensued concerning the possibility for a “road diet” program for Route 60.  Eligibility 
may depend on whether or not If Federal funds had been used to construct the road.  James City 
County is looking at build-out traffic counts to determine if lanes could be narrowed. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
Colonial Parkway Signage 
 
Ms. Geyer indicated that signs to direct cyclists around the tunnel detour in Williamsburg would 
need to be installed by the City.  Mr. Rhodes indicated that the City would not be in favor of 
detour signs.  The possibility of a sign with a map at each end was suggested.  The information 
could also be included on the National Park Service and City web sites. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Ms. Geyer noted that a new NPS visitor survey would include a question on biking. 
 



4/20/09 HTBAC Meeting Notes 
Page 5 
 
Ms. Carter noted that the Chamber of Commerce and area vacation timeshare representatives 
were working on marketing the Active Williamsburg Alliance. 
 
Ms. Carter noted the upcoming May is Bike Month activities. 
 
Ms. Geyer noted a planned summer opening for a new multi-use trail between Route 359 and the 
Jamestown Glasshouse. 
 
Mr. Turnbull acknowledged the good work done on John Tyler Road improvements. 
 
The Bike Friendly Community Program was discussed.  The program is sponsored by the 
League of American Bicyclists.  In Virginia, Arlington County and Charlottesville are members 
of the program.  The suggestion was made to have someone from the program speak at one of 
the committee meetings.  The committee had considered the program two years ago, but at the 
time, the program was not available to multiple jurisdictions as a regional program.  Mr. 
Turnbull will check to se it the committee could apply for the designation. 
 
Mr. Bartram noted information on bicycle traffic laws from the VDOT website.  A bicycle is 
considered a vehicle, and should not be passed on a road with double yellow median striping. 
 
Mr. Turnbull noted that DMV tests now include bicycle questions. 
 
Members inquired if there would be bike lanes at the Oriana Road/Route 17 entrance to the new 
York County sports complex.  Ms. Parker answered that Route 17 is not designated for bicycle 
travel, so bike lanes were not included at the intersection. 
 
Mr. Beatovich suggested including information about HTBAC in the Williamsburg Area 
Bicyclists and Peninsula Bicycling Association web sites.  Mr. Turnbull will work on including 
info on the WAB site.  Ms. Parker noted that there is a link to HTBAC information on the York 
County website. 
 
 
 
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:30 pm. 


